

Sec. 21. Section 166D.16, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

1. The provisions of this chapter including departmental rules adopted pursuant to this chapter shall be administered and enforced by the department.

2. A Except as provided in this subsection, a person violating a provision of this chapter or any rule adopted pursuant to this chapter shall be subject to a civil penalty of at least one hundred dollars but not more than one thousand dollars.

a. However, a ~~A~~ person who falsifies a certificate of inspection issued pursuant to this chapter shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than five thousand dollars for each swine falsified on the certificate. A person shall not be subject to a civil penalty totaling more than twenty-five thousand dollars for falsifying a certificate, regardless of the number of swine falsified on the certificate.

b. The person who owns swine when the swine is required to be vaccinated under this chapter shall be subject to a civil penalty of two dollars for each swine which is not vaccinated as required.

Sec. 22. Sections 166D.4 and 166D.5, Code 1999, are repealed.

Sec. 23. RULEMAKING. The department of agriculture and land stewardship shall adopt rules necessary to implement this Act. Such rules shall be effective immediately upon adoption and filing in the governor's office after publication under notice and after the administrative rules review committee has had an opportunity to review the noticed rules, as provided in chapter 17A.

Sec. 24. IMPLEMENTATION. The department shall provide for the implementation of this Act based on a schedule adopted by departmental rules. However, the department shall implement all provisions of this Act by August 1, 2000.

Sec. 25. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

Approved April 19, 2000

---

## CHAPTER 1111

### LOESS HILLS DEVELOPMENT AND CONSERVATION AUTHORITY — HUNGRY CANYONS ALLIANCE — LOESS HILLS ALLIANCE

S.F. 2348

**AN ACT** relating to the loess hills development and conservation authority by creating a hungry canyons alliance, providing membership guidelines for board of directors of the conservation authority and loess hills alliance, and providing for the assistance of state agencies.

*Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:*

Section 1. Section 161D.1, Code Supplement 1999, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

**NEW SUBSECTION.** 3A. A hungry canyons alliance is created. The hungry canyons alliance shall be governed by a board of directors appointed as provided in its bylaws and

the board shall carry out its responsibilities under the general direction of the loess hills development and conservation authority. The bylaws of the hungry canyons alliance are subject to review and approval of the loess hills development and conservation authority.

Sec. 2. Section 161D.1, Code Supplement 1999, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 5. In matters relating to the conservation, preservation, or development of the loess hills, state agencies shall coordinate, cooperate, and consult with the loess hills development and conservation authority and its associated alliances.

Sec. 3. Section 161D.5, subsection 1, Code Supplement 1999, is amended by adding the following new paragraph:

NEW PARAGRAPH. c. The voting members of the board of directors appointed pursuant to paragraphs "a" and "b" shall include agricultural producers owning real property within the loess hills landform.

Approved April 19, 2000

## CHAPTER 1112

### HUMAN SERVICES — ADMINISTRATION AND EMPLOYMENT

S.F. 2360

AN ACT relating to state and local administrative and employment provisions involving human services and providing an effective date.

*Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:*

#### DIVISION I

#### ADMINISTRATION OF DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES INSTITUTIONS

Section 1. Section 218.1, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

The director ~~of the state department~~ of human services shall have the general and full authority given under statute to control, manage, direct, and operate the following institutions under the director's jurisdiction, and may at the director's discretion ~~execute~~ assign the powers and authorities given the director by statute to any one of the deputy directors, division administrators, or ~~to any of the~~ officers or employees of the divisions of the department of human services:

Sec. 2. Section 218.2, unnumbered paragraph 2, Code 1999, is amended to read as follows:

The ~~division~~ administrator to whom primary responsibility of a particular institution has been assigned shall make ~~such~~ reports to the director of the ~~department~~ of human services as are requested by the director and the director shall report, in writing, to the governor any abuses found to exist in any of the ~~said~~ institutions.

Sec. 3. Section 218.3, Code 1999, is amended by striking the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

#### 218.3 DEFINITIONS.

For the purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. "Administrator" means the person to whom the director of human services has assigned power and authority over an institution in accordance with section 218.1.
2. "Institution" means an institution listed in section 218.1.